
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETING  

AGENDA 

TUESDAY, May 19, 2015 
 

 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4) 

Vice-Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) 

Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5) 

Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3) 

Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MAY 19, 2015 

   Page 1 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
05/19/2015 
 

  
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, May 19, 2015 - 7:00 p.m. to 10:30 p.m. 

(Times established by Resolution No. 2014-08… commencing at 7:00 p.m., and ending no later than 
10:30 p.m., which can be extended by motion of the Council.) 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 

   
 

Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)             Town Manager William F. Underwood, II 
Vice-Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1) Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)  Jim Fleischmann, Town Planning Consultant 
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3)  Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 
 

 
PUBLIC NOTICE/AGENDA 

 
1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 
 

2. CONSENT AGENDA  
 

a. Minutes: 
• March 17, 2015 – Regular Town Council Meeting 

 
b. Consideration to cancel the June 2, 2015, Town Council Meeting. 

 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
 

Tentative  
Subject to Revision 
 

1 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MAY 19, 2015 

   Page 2 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
05/19/2015 
 

4.  PRESENTATIONS – NONE 
 
 

5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS - NONE 
 
 

6. ORDINANCES 
 

a. ORDINANCE 2015-02 ORDINANCE NO. 2015-02 / PUBLIC HEARING /  SECOND 
AND FINAL READING:  (Council Board Appointment for Planning & Zoning Board  / Local 
Planning Agency (LPA) Members).   

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA, AMENDING ORDINANCE 2011-011, WHICH ESTABLISHED THE TOWN’S 
PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD, AS AMENDED BY ORDINANCE 2012-02, TO AMEND 
SECTION 2, SUBSECTION ENTITLED “COMPOSITION AND TERM OF OFFICE”, TO CHANGE 
THE TERM OF OFFICE FOR PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD MEMBERS FROM THREE 
YEAR TERMS TO ONE YEAR TERMS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, 
CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
b. ORDINANCE NO. 2015-03 / PUBLIC HEARING / SECOND AND FINAL 
READING: (Prohibiting Disposal of Waste Materials)   

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA, PROHIBITING THE DISPOSAL OF WASTE MATERIALS, AS DEFINED HEREIN, 
WITHIN THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; FINDING THAT A VIOLATION OF THIS 
ORDINANCE SHALL BE DEEMED A NUISANCE; PROVIDING FOR ENFORCEMENT; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CODIFICATION; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  

 
 

7. RESOLUTIONS 
 

a. RESOLUTION 2015-10: (Welcoming New Commissioner Melissa McKinlay) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA WELCOMING THE ELECTION OF COMMISSIONER MELISSA MCKINLAY AS 
COUNTY COMMISSIONER FOR DISTRICT 6; EXPRESSING THE TOWN COUNCIL’S OPTIMISM 
FOR WORKING WITH COMMISSIONER MCKINLAY FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE RESIDENTS 
OF THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR DISTRIBUTION OF THIS RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 
 
 

2 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MAY 19, 2015 

   Page 3 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
05/19/2015 
 

b.  RESOLUTION NO. 2015-15  (Budget Amendments)  
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA, ADOPTING A BUDGET AMENDMENT F O R  T H E  T O W N ’ S  B U D G E T  FO R  T H E  
FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2014 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2015; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
c. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-17 (Appointment of Planning and Zoning/LPA Members and 

Alternates) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA, APPOINTING ________________________________, 
________________________________, ________________________________, 
________________________________, AND ___________________________________________, AS 
REGULAR MEMBERS OF THE TOWN’S PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD TO SERVE TERMS 
OF ONE (1) YEAR, AND APPOINTING ______________________ AND ______________________ 
AS ALTERNATE MEMBERS OF THE TOWN’S PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD TO SERVE 
TERMS OF ONE (1) YEAR; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

d. RESOLUTION no. 2015-18: (Procedures/Public Participation at Town Boards or 
Committees) 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA, RELATING TO PROCEDURES AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION FOR TOWN BOARD 
AND COMMITTEE MEETINGS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
QUASI-JUDICIAL RESOLUTIONS 

 
e. RESOLUTION NO. 2015-16 QUASI JUDICIAL / PUBLIC HEARING (Day 

property Site Plan Approval) 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
FLORIDA, APPROVING THE DAY PROPERTY SITE PLAN, FOR LAND OWNED BY WILLIE H. 
AND FRANKIE J. DAY, CONSISTING OF 9.3 ACRES MORE OR LESS, LOCATED AT THE 
SOUTHWEST CORNER OF OKEECHOBEE BOULEVARD AND FOLSOM ROAD 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, LEGALLY DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT “A” TO THIS 
RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   

 
 
 
 

3 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 TOWN COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA, TUESDAY, MAY 19, 2015 

   Page 4 of 4  
 

 
Town Council Agenda 
05/19/2015 
 

8. MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood 
 

a. AGENDA ITEM REPORT (AIR) - Updates on various activities and issues 
concerning the Town. 
 
 

9. OLD BUSINESS – NONE 
 
 

10. NEW BUSINESS  
 

a. Approve or modify Local Planning Agency recommendation regarding Okeechobee 
Boulevard Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Amendment. 

 
 

11. COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
a. Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel 

• Discussion of Grant Applications for Trails. 
• Discussion and Direction on Interlocal Agreement (ILA) for Trails. 

 
 

12. CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public  
b. Town Attorney 
c. Town Council Members 

 
 
13.   ADJOURNMENT 
 
 
 
 

The next regular Town Council Meeting is tentatively scheduled for June 16, 2015. 
 
 
 

 
Comment Cards: Anyone from the public wishing to address the Town Council must complete a Comment Card before speaking. This 
must be filled out completely with your full name and address and given to the Town Clerk. During the meeting, before public 
comments, you may only address the item on the agenda in which is being discussed at the time of your comment. During public 
comments, you may address any item you desire. Please remember that there is a three (3) minute time limit on all public comment. Any 
person who decides to appeal any decision of the Council with respect to any matter considered at this meeting will need a record of the 
proceedings and for such purpose, may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made which included testimony and 
evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. Persons with disabilities requiring accommodations in order to participate should contact 
the Town Clerk’s Office (561-793-2418), at least 48 hours in advance to request such accommodation. 

4 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 2.a. & b.  

Consent Agenda 
 

a. Minutes:  March 17, 2015 

b. Cancellation June 2, 2015 TC Meeting 

5 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 17, 2015 
   Page 1 of 4  

 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/17/2015 
 

 
Town of Loxahatchee Groves 

Town Council Meeting 
Tuesday, March 17, 2015 at 7:00 p.m. 

(Or As Soon As Possible following the Canvassing Board Meeting) 
Loxahatchee Groves Water Control District, 101 West “D” Road 

   
Mayor David Browning (Seat 4)   Town Manager William F. Underwood, II 
Vice Mayor Ronald D. Jarriel (Seat 1)  Town Clerk Janet K. Whipple 
Councilman Tom Goltzené (Seat 5)  Town Planning Consultant, Jim Fleischmann          
Councilman Ryan Liang (Seat 3)   Town Attorney Michael D. Cirullo, Jr. 
Councilman Jim Rockett (Seat 2) 

 
MINUTES 

1. OPENING 
 

a. Call to Order & Roll Call 
      
 Mayor Browning called the meeting to order at 7:02.  Present were Mayor Browning, Vice 
Mayor Ron Jarriel, Councilmen Tom Goltzené, Ryan Liang, and Jim Rockett.  Also in 
attendance were Town Manager Bill Underwood, Town Attorney Mike Cirullo, and Town 
Clerk Janet K. Whipple.   
 
b. Pledge of Allegiance & Invocation – Mayor Browning 
 
c. Approval of Agenda 

 
 Motion:   Councilman Goltzené made a motion to amend the Agenda by having Public 
Comment placed as 1.d.  Mayor Browning passed the gavel and seconded the motion.  
Upon vote, the motion failed 2/3 with Vice-Mayor Jarriel, Councilmen Liang and Rockett 
casting the dissenting votes.   
 
Motion:  Councilman Rocket made a motion to accept the Agenda, as presented.  Vice-
Mayor Jarriel seconded the motion.  Upon vote, the motion passed 3/2 with Mayor 
Browning and Councilman Goltzené casting the dissenting votes.   

 

6 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 17, 2015 
   Page 2 of 4  

 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/17/2015 
 

d. SWEARING IN OF COUNCIL MEMBERS RON JARRIEL (SEAT NO. 1) AND 
RYAN LIANG (SEAT NO. 3). 

 
Town Attorney Cirullo provided the protocol for swearing in the new Council Members. 
 
Town Clerk Whipple swore in Councilman Ron Jarriel (Seat No. 1) and Councilman Ryan Liang 
(Seat No. 3) as the newly elected Town Council Members.   
 
Clerk Note:  Appointment of Mayor and Vice-Mayor will be conducted during the April 7, 
2015, Town Council Meeting. (Pursuant to the Town Charter. Section 2(2)(a)) 

 
2. CONSENT AGENDA  - NONE 

 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
Virginia Standish – 15410 North Road, thanked to Seth Brier for taking photos.  Jarriel and 
Liang ran a very organized campaign.  Her recommendation for a best solution would be to have 
a new election.  Mrs. Standish advised that she will also be filing a complaint. 

 
Laura Danowski, 1032 E Road, commented on process and law, and that the process has been 
trampled.  She requested that people stand for law, become a town, and have civility. 

 
Tim Hart-Woods, 15201 Timberlane Place stated that the Town stinks and the situation with the 
election is something bad that happened.  He discussed how many ballots were cast over the last 
three (3) years.  Also, he was ashamed tonight and requested that Ryan Liang resign for the good 
of the Town, and take Mr. Rockett as well. 

 
Dennis Lipp – 13402 North Road, announced that a recall process will begin and he is seeking 
members for the committee.   

 
Todd McLendon –3481 D Road, stated it was a circus, and he volunteered to be a member of the 
committee, and requested Councilman Liang step down from office. 

 
Richard Jarolem – Attorney for Keith Harris, though he would be putting in comments prior to 
the swearing in, and was disappointed that Council did not allow this to happen.  He referenced 
the Town Charter and stated what would happen now if charges were filed.  

 
Phyllis Maniglia, 359 West D Road, requested the Town Council be placed on hiatus. 

 
John Whittles, Attorney for Ryan Liang,  requested the community abide by the Judge’s 
decision. 

 
Jo Siciliano, 1530 B Road, took offense for the disregard of the citizens. 

7 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 17, 2015 
   Page 3 of 4  

 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/17/2015 
 

 
Ken Johnson, 15409 Collecting Canal Road, stated the residents have the right to vote for what is 
right in this Town 

 
Bill Louda, 1300 E Road has nothing else to say. 

 
Maureen Lefkowitz, 3485 D Road, stated the Town needs to come from a calm place rather than 
from anger.  She wants to live in a peaceful community, and noted everyone must be respectful.   

 
4.  PRESENTATIONS - NONE 

  
5.  COMMITTEE REPORTS – NONE 
 
6.  RESOLUTIONS - NONE 
 
7.  ORDINANCES – NONE 

 
 8.  TOWN MANAGER’S REPORT – Town Manager Underwood - NONE  
  
9.  OLD BUSINESS - NONE 
  
10. NEW BUSINESS – NONE 
 
11.  COUNCIL REPORTS 
 
12. CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

a. Public 
 

No further comments. 
 

b. Town Attorney   
 

Town Attorney Cirullo had nothing further to say. 
 

c. Town Council Members 
        
Councilman Goltzené has nothing good to say. 
 
Vice-Mayor Jarriel thanked everyone for voting, and for them to have a good St. Patty’s Day. 

        
Councilman Liang thanked everyone for the support. 
 

8 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES, TUESDAY, MARCH 17, 2015 
   Page 4 of 4  

 

 
Town Council Minutes 
03/17/2015 
 

Councilman Rockett thanked the public for coming. 
 
Mayor Browning stated everyone has a right to speak their heart.  He supported the staff at the 
Supervisor of Elections Office and said if someone is an outright liar there is nothing they can do 
about it.  Be careful in causing blame to everyone, let the chips fall where they will, that is why 
we have a legal process.  We do what we have to by law, and we will continue to do our best to 
serve the people in Loxahatchee Groves. 
 
12.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Town Council, Mayor Browning adjourned 
the meeting at 7:25 p.m. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
______________________________           ____________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk                     David Browning, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

These minutes were approved during the Town Council Meeting of May 19, 2015. 

9 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council  

AGENDA ITEM REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM NO. CONSENT AGENDA 2.b.  

MEETING DATE: 05/19/2015 

PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II, Town Manager 
 

SUBJECT:  Cancel June 2, 2015, Town Council Meeting  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement: Town staff will be attending educational training through June 3, 2015, 
and will be unavailable to be at the Town Council meeting on June 2, 2015.  
 

Problem Solution:  Town Council cancel the June 2, 2015, meeting pursuant to Resolution 
2014-08; confirming the time and place of regular Town Council meetings, Section 3.  
 
This office has registered for and purchased transportation for continuing professional education 
training being held in Philadelphia.  

 

2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

We will be attending required continuing professional education training in Philadelphia from 
May 30, 2015 through the morning of June 3, 2015.  As a result, we will not be available to 
attend the June 2nd meeting.  
 

 

3.  ATTACHMENTS  
 

  
 

4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 

 N/A      
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
 A motion to cancel the June 2, 2015, Town Council meeting.   

10 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 6.a. 

ORDINANCES 

2015-02 Second/ 
Final Reading Reading 

Appointment for Planning & Zoning Board/Local Planning Agenda 
Members 

 

 

 
 

11 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATACHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-02 
 

{00069435.1 1574-0702400 }  

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, AMENDING ORDINANCE 2011-
011, WHICH ESTABLISHED THE TOWN’S PLANNING AND ZONING 
BOARD, AS AMENDED BY ORDINANCE 2012-02, TO AMEND 
SECTION 2, SUBSECTION ENTITLED “COMPOSITION AND TERM 
OF OFFICE”, TO CHANGE THE TERM OF OFFICE FOR PLANNING 
AND ZONING BOARD MEMBERS FROM THREE YEAR TERMS TO 
ONE YEAR TERMS; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, SEVERABILITY, 
CODIFICATION, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, in 2011, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves adopted 

Ordinance 2011-011 which established the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board; and,  

WHEREAS, in 2012, the Town Council adopted Ordinance 2012-02, which amended 

Ordinance 2011-011 to allow alternate members of the Planning and Zoning Board to participate 

in any matter coming before the Board at a meeting at which the alternate member attends; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds it is in the best interest of the Town to change the 

terms of office for members of the Planning and Zoning Board from three (3) year terms to one 

(1) year terms. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 

 Section 1:  That the foregoing “WHEREAS” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance.   

12 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATACHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-02 
 

{00069435.1 1574-0702400 }  
Strike-thru represents deleted text, and underline represents added text. 
 
 

Page 2 of 3 

Section 2:  The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves hereby amends 

Ordinance 2011-011, as amended by Ordinance 2012-02, to amend the Section entitled 

“Composition and term of office,” as follows:  

 . .  

Sec.      - Composition and term of office. 
 
(1) The Planning and Zoning Board shall be composed of five (5)  

members, and two (2) alternate members placed in office in accordance with the 
following procedure:  

 
(a) Each member of the Town Council, following his or her election or 

re-election to office, shall nominate a qualified citizen for 
appointment to the Planning and Zoning Board by the Town 
Council, to serve one (1) year termsa term of three (3) years. 

(b) Two (2) alternative members, designated as Alternate No. 1 and 
Alternate No. 2, shall be appointed by the Town Council each year 
to serve one (1) year terms.  Alternate members may participate in 
all matters that come before the Board at meetings at which they 
attend.  However, alternate members may only vote as members of 
the Board, in their designated order, whenever any regular member 
of the Board is absent. 

 
. . .  
 

Section 3: Conflicts.  All Ordinances or parts of Ordinances, Resolutions or parts of 

Resolutions in conflict herewith, be and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such 

conflict.   

Section 4:  Severability.  If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of 

this Ordinance is for any reason held by the Court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, or void, 

such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. 

13 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATACHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-02 
 

{00069435.1 1574-0702400 }  
Strike-thru represents deleted text, and underline represents added text. 
 
 

Page 3 of 3 

 Section 5:  Codification.  It is the intention of the Town Council of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the 

Code of Ordinances of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, and that the Sections of this 

ordinance may be re-numbered, re-lettered, and the word "Ordinance" may be changed to 

"Section", "Article" or such other word or phrase in order to accomplish such intention. 

Section 6:  Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect immediately upon adoption. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ___ DAY OF 
____________________, 2015. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ____________________, 2015.       
              

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE  
GROVES, FLORIDA  
 

 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet Whipple, Town Clerk    Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 

14 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 6.b. 

Ordinance No 2015-03  

Second/Final Reading 

Prohibiting Disposal of Waste Material 

 
 

15 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00075764.1 1574-0702400 }  

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-03 
 
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, PROHIBITING THE 
DISPOSAL OF WASTE MATERIALS, AS DEFINED HEREIN, 
WITHIN THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; 
FINDING THAT A VIOLATION OF THIS ORDINANCE SHALL 
BE DEEMED A NUISANCE; PROVIDING FOR 
ENFORCEMENT; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; 
AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council has heard concerns from Town Management and the public 

relating to abuses by commercial haulers and property owners for depositing or disposal of Waste 

Materials are defined herein, referencing state statute and regulatory rule definitions, on properties 

within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, the Town Council continues to be concerned with quality of life, including 

water quality within the drainage canals in the Town, and has heard from residents about concerns 

from continued abuse of depositing and disposal of Waste Materials within the Town; and,  

 WHEREAS, the depositing and disposal of Waste Materials is a public nuisance, attracting 

flies and emanating odors to nearby properties; and,  

 WHEREAS, Florida statutes and administrative rules contain definitions of several types of 

waste materials, the disposal of which the Town Council deems to be nuisances, and finds it in the 

best interest of the Town to incorporate and use such definitions in order to ensure consistency with 

Florida law that prohibits the use by municipalities of definitions relating to solid waste that are 

inconsistent with statutory definitions; and,   

 

16 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{00075764.1 1574-0702400 } 2 
 

 

 WHEREAS, the Town Council believes that prohibiting the disposal of Waste Materials is 

necessary to prevent illegal dumping and pollution, and avoid the creation of public nuisances 

within the Town; and,   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing “Whereas” clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Ordinance upon adoption 

hereof.      

 Section 2. Definitions.  The following definitions shall apply to this Ordinance. 

(a) Waste Materials: Ash Residue, Biomedical Waste, Biological Waste, Class I Waste, 

Class III Waste, Commercial Solid Waste, Construction and Demolition Debris, 

Contaminated Soil, Garbage, Hazardous Waste, Household Waste, Industrial byproducts, 

Industrial Solid Waste, Leachate, Liquid Waste, Oily Waste, Recovered Materials, 

Recyclable Materials, Sludge, Solid Waste, Special Wastes, and White Goods, all as 

defined in §403.703, Florida Statutes, and Rule 62-701.200, Florida Administrative Code, 

incorporated herein and attached hereto as Composite Exhibit “A”.  The definitions in 

this Ordinance shall be deemed amended upon the amendment of §403.703, Florida 

Statutes, and Rule 62-701.200, Florida Administrative Code. 

(b) Disposal: The discharge, deposit, injection, dumping, spilling, leaking, or placing of any 

waste material into or upon any land or water so that such waste materials or any 

constituent thereof may enter other lands or be emitted into the air or discharged into any 

waters, including groundwaters, or otherwise enter the environment. 

17 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{00075764.1 1574-0702400 } 3 
 

(c) Public Nuisance:  the unreasonable, unwarranted and/or unlawful activity and/or use of 

property, which causes inconvenience or damage to others, either to individuals and/or to 

the general public. 

 Section 3. Prohibition of Depositing or Disposing of Waste Materials.  The 

disposal of Waste Material, including without limitation, receiving, spreading or storing such 

Waste Material on Property, or of any other item for which the property owner receives a tipping 

fee or similar compensation to receive such item for disposal or depositing, within the corporate 

limits of the Town is prohibited. 

 Section 4. Nuisance.  A violation of this ordinance is deemed by the Town Council 

to be a public nuisance. 

 Section 5. Violation of State Laws.  The Town Council specifically finds that a 

violation of this ordinance presents a public nuisance for purposes of enforcement of Section 

403.413, Florida Statutes, and law enforcement officers charged with the enforcement of state 

and local laws within the Town shall strictly enforce Section 403.413, Florida Statutes.    

 Section 6. Enforcement.  This ordinance shall be enforced as follows: 

(a) Law enforcement officers are authorized to enforce this ordinance.   

(b) In addition to penalties resulting from a violation of Section 403.413, Florida 

Statutes, the fines for violations of this ordinance by drivers of vehicles of Waste Materials 

disposed in violation of this Ordinance shall be: 

First Offense Second Offense Third Offense All Additional 
Offenses 

$100 $250 $400 $500 

 
(c) The Town may also file charges for any offense in a court with jurisdiction, in 

which case the penalty shall be a fine of $500, imprisonment not to exceed sixty (60) days, or 

18 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{00075764.1 1574-0702400 } 4 
 

both, for each violation of this ordinance.  The Town shall recover its costs of prosecution, 

including attorney’s fees, filing fees, and personnel costs for law enforcement and Town 

employees. 

(d) To the extent authorized by law, the Town Administration is authorized to use the 

Town’s Code Enforcement process to enforce violations of this ordinance where a law 

enforcement officer has not otherwise issued violations of Section 403.413, Florida Statutes, or 

of this ordinance.  In such instances, the fine shall be the maximum permitted by law.  The Town 

shall recover its costs of prosecution, including attorney’s fees, filing fees, and personnel costs 

for law enforcement and Town employees. 

(e) Each day a violation remains constitutes a separate violation of this ordinance. 

(f) The Town Manager shall report any violation of this ordinance to state, county, 

and other regulatory agencies which he or she deems appropriate and request review by such 

agencies for any additional violations of local, state or federal laws and regulations.     

 Section 7. Repeal of Laws in Conflict.  All Ordinances or part of Ordinances in 

conflict herewith are in the same are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 8. Severability. If any section, paragraph, sentence, clause, phrase, or word 

of this Ordinance is for any reason held by the Court to be unconstitutional, inoperative, or void, 

such holding shall not affect the remainder of this Ordinance. 

 Section 9. Codification.  It is the intention of the Town Council of the Town of 

Loxahatchee Groves that the provisions of this Ordinance shall become and be made a part of the 

Code of Ordinances of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, and that the Sections of this 

ordinance may be re-numbered, re-lettered, and the word "Ordinance" may be changed to 

"Section", "Article" or such other word or phrase in order to accomplish such intention. 

19 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{00075764.1 1574-0702400 } 5 
 

 Section 10. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 

its passage and adoption.  

  
PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 

LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ON FIRST READING, THIS ___ DAY OF 
____________________, 2015. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, ON SECOND READING AND PUBLIC HEARING, THIS 
_____ DAY OF ____________________, 2015.       
              

 
TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE  
GROVES, FLORIDA  
 

 
ATTEST:      ____________________________________ 
       Mayor David Browning  
        
_________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet Whipple, Town Clerk    Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
    
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:   
       ____________________________________
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
_________________________________   
Office of the Town Attorney    ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
 

20 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

{00075764.1 1574-0702400 } 6 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

§403.703, Florida Statutes (2014) 
Rule 62-701.200, Florida Administrative Code 

21 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 7.a. 

RESOLUTION NO 2015-10 

Melissa McKinlay 

22 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-10 
 

  

  
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA WELCOMING THE ELECTION OF 
COMMISSIONER MELISSA MCKINLAY AS COUNTY COMMISSIONER FOR 
DISTRICT 6; EXPRESSING THE TOWN COUNCIL’S OPTIMISM FOR 
WORKING WITH COMMISSIONER MCKINLAY FOR THE BENEFIT OF THE 
RESIDENTS OF THE TOWN; PROVIDING FOR DISTRIBUTION OF THIS 
RESOLUTION; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
CONFLICTS; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, Melissa McKinlay was elected as Palm Beach County Commissioner for District 6 

at the November 4, 2014, election; and 

 WHEREAS, District 6 includes the Town of Loxahatchee Groves; and,       

 WHEREAS, the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves welcomes Commissioner 

McKinlay as a representative of the Town and its residents, and looks forward to working with 

Commissioner McKinlay on interests that affect Palm Beach County and the Town of Loxahatchee 

Groves.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN 

OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as being 

true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

Section 2. The Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida, congratulates 

Melissa McKinlay and welcomes her election as Palm Beach County Commissioner for District 6, which 

includes the Town of Loxahatchee Groves.  The Town Council expresses its optimism and expectation of 

working with Commissioner McKinlay for the benefit of the Town and its residents.   

  Section 3. The Town Clerk is directed to transmit a copy of this Resolution to County 

Commissioner Melissa McKinlay, as well as all members of the Palm Beach County Commission.  

23 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-10 
     
 

 Page 2 of 3 

Section 4. If any clause, section, or other part or application of this Resolution shall be held by 

any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such unconstitutional or invalid part 

or application shall be considered as eliminated and so not affecting the validity of the remaining portions 

or applications remaining in full force and effect. 

 Section 5. All Resolutions or parts of Resolutions in conflict herewith be and the same are 

hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict. 

 Section 6. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and adoption. 

ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

FLORIDA, THIS 3RD DAY OF FEBRUARY, 2015.  

 
ATTEST:      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
        FLORIDA 
_______________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   __________________________________ 
        Mayor David Browning  
 
             __________________________________ 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  Vice Mayor Ron Jarriel   
      
____________________________   __________________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney    Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 
        __________________________________ 
        Council Member Ryan Liang 
           
                    __________________________________   
        Council Member Jim Rockett 
                 
    
  

24 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 7.b. 

RESOLUTION NO 2015-15 

 

Budget Amendments 

25 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council  

AGENDA ITEM REPORT 
AGENDA ITEM NO. 7.b. 
MEETING DATE: 05/19/2015 

PREPARED BY:   William F. Underwood, II, Town Manager 
 

SUBJECT:  Resolution No. 2015-15:  Amending Estimate Revenues And Appropriations 
For Fiscal Year 2015, Beginning October 1, 2014, And Ending September 30, 2015.  
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement: Town Council requested the FY 2015 appropriations be modified to 
accommodate contractual arrangements and other items.  
 

Problem Solution:  Town Council adopts a resolution amending the FY 2015 estimated 
revenues and appropriations.  
 
At the Town Council meeting of May 5, 2015, Town Council, by consensus, requested staff 
return with a resolution providing for budget amendment to reallocate and accommodate 
additional expenditures with appropriations in the particular funds.  

 

2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

Staff prepared an amendment to the FY 2015 budget implementing Town Council Direction.  
The reallocation of appropriations and estimated revenues provides no change in the total 
funding levels of the Town’s operations. The attached resolution with its exhibit reflects 
changes only within the General Fund and Solid Waste Fund.    
 

 

3.  ATTACHMENTS  
 

 Resolution 2015-15 
Exhibit “B” – Statement of Estimated Changes in Fund Balances 

 
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 

 There is no financial impact as funding levels do not change from the original appropriations.     
  
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  
 A motion to adopt Resolution 2015-15.   

26 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-15 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, ADOPTING A BUDGET 
AMENDMENT  FOR  THE  TOWN’S  BUDGET  FOR  THE  FISCAL 
YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2014 AND ENDING SEPTEMBER 
30, 2015; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS, AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 166.241(4), Florida Statutes, the Town may amend its 

adopted budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2014 and ending September 30, 2015, at any 

time within a fiscal year, and 

WHEREAS, the Town Management has concluded a review of the budget and expenditures 

during the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2014 and ending September 30, 2015, and is 

recommending amendments to the Town’s budget as set forth in Exhibit “A” hereto. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA: 

Section 1. Each "WHEREAS" clause set forth above is true and correct and herein 
 
incorporated by this reference. 

 
Section 2. The Town’s adopted budget for the Fiscal Year beginning October 1, 2014, 

 
and ending September 30, 2015, is hereby amended as set forth in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and 

expressly made a part hereof. 

Section 3. If any clause, section, or other part of this Resolution shall be held by any court 
 
of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, such unconstitutional or invalid part shall be 

considered as eliminated and shall in no way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this 

Resolution. 

 

 

 
27 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Section 4. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed 
to the extent of such conflict. 

 
Section 5. This  Resolution  shall become  effective  immediately upon  its passage  and 

 
adoption. 

 
PASSED  AND  ADOPTED  BY  THE  TOWN  OF  LOXAHATCHEE  GROVES, 

FLORIDA, THIS 19th DAY OF MAY, 2015. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 

FLORIDA 
 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk 

 

 
Mayor David Browning 
 

 
 

 Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel 
                                                                                       
                                                                                         ________________________________________ 
________________ Council Member Tom Goltzené 

 
 
 
 APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:                      Council Member Ryan Liang 

 
 
______________________________________ 
 Office of the Town Attorney                                         Council Member Jim Rockett 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 
28 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



EXHIBIT "A" 
 
(BUDGET AMENDMENTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2014 

AND ENDING ON SEPTEMBER 30, 2015) 

29 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY13-14 FY13-14 FY13-14
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

001-311-100-000 AD VALOREM TAXES @ 1.2000 217,931          217,931          
TAXES SUBTOTAL 217,931          0 217,931          

001-314-100-000 ELECTRIC UTILITY TAX          203,000          203,000          
001-314-510-000 COMMUNICATION SERVICES TAX    103,352          103,352          
001-316-200-000 COUNTY OCCUPATIONAL LICENSES  5,000              0 5,000              

TAXES SUBTOTAL 311,352          0 311,352          

001-323-100-000 FPL FRANCHISE FEE             185,000          185,000          
001-323-125-000 HAULER LICENSING FEE -                      -                      
001-323-300-000 PBC WATER UTILITY FRANCHISE FEE 5,050              0 5,050              
001-329-100-000 PLANNING & ZONING PERMIT 2,000              0 2,000              

PERMITS, FRANCHISE FEES & SPECIAL SUBTOTAL 192,050          0 192,050          

001-335-120-000 STATE REVENUE SHARING         90,689            0 90,689            
001-335-180-000 HALF CENT SALES TAX           243,375          0 243,375          

INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE SUBTOTAL 334,064          0 334,064          

001-341-000-000 GENERAL GOVERNMENT CHARGES     4,000              0 4,000              
001-343-349-000 COST RECOVERY FEES 35,000            25,000 60,000            

CHARGES FOR SERVICES 39,000            25,000 64,000            

001-351-100-000 COURT FINES -                      0 -                      
001-354-100-000 CODE ENFORCEMENT FINES 300                 0 300                 

JUDGEMENTS, FINES & FORFEITS SUBTOTAL 300                 0 300                 

001-361-100-000 INTEREST                      200               0 200               
001-369-000-000 OTHER MISC INCOME             1,000            0 1,000            

OTHER MISC. REVENUE SUBTOTAL 1,200              0 1,200              

001-381-305-000 INTER-FUND TRANSFER IN CIP 1,000,000       0 1,000,000       
001-385-100-000 TRANSFER FROM SANITATION FUND -                      
001-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM  FUND BALANCE -                     (25,000) (25,000)         

OTHER NON-OPERATING SOURCES TOTAL 1,000,000       (25,000)           975,000          

GRAND TOTAL REVENUE 2,095,897     -                     2,095,897     

MISCELLANEOUS

TAXES

GENERAL FUND:
Fiscal Year 2014-15

ESTIMATED REVENUES

30 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

wunde_000
Typewritten Text
Exhibit "A"



FY13-14 FY13-14 FY13-14
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

GENERAL FUND:
Fiscal Year 2014-15

001-511-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 650                 -                      650                 
001-511-400-000 TRAVEL 3,000              (2,000)             1,000              
001-511-490-000  POSTAGE & FREIGHT - (Was legal advertising) -                      -                      -                      
001-511-492-000 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES      1,500              -                      1,500              
001-511-499-000 OTHER CURRENT CHARGES - New Town Counsel Compensaton 30,000            -                      30,000            
001-511-500-000 EDUCATION AND TRAINING        1,000              -                      1,000              
001-511-510-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES               300                 -                      300                 
001-511-520-000 OPERATING SUPPLIES            300                 -                      300                 
001-511-540-000 BOOKS, PUBLICATIONS AND DUES   1,935              -                      1,935              
001-511-820-000 SPECIAL EVENTS/CONTRIBUTIONS 4,000            6,000              10,000          

 LEGISLATIVE  TOTAL    42,685          4,000              46,685          

001-512-340-000  OTHER SERVICES 269,653          -                      269,653          
001-512-400-000 TRAVEL 1,500              -                      1,500              
001-512-410-000 COMMUNICATION SERVICES - (Moved to Gen Govt)   -                      -                      -                      
001-512-420-000 POSTAGE & FREIGHT                      1,000              -                      1,000              
001-512-490-000  LEGAL ADVERTISING - (New) 500                 -                      500                 
001-512-492-000 OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES      944                 -                      944                 
001-512-493-000  ELECTION EXPENSE 8,010              5,000              13,010            
001-512-510-000 OFFICE SUPPLIES               12,000            -                      12,000            
001-512-521-000 LOXAHATCHEE GROVES C.E.R.T. - (Moved to Gen Govt) -                      -                      -                      

 001-512-540-000 BOOKS, PUBLICATIONS AND DUES   570               -                     570               
 EXECUTIVE TOTAL 294,177        5,000              299,177        

001-513-320-000 ACCOUNTING AND AUDITING 18,000            -                      18,000            
001-513-470-000 PRINTING AND BINDING          1,751              -                      1,751              
001-513-490-000 LEGAL ADVERTISING             2,000              -                      2,000              
001-513-493-000 ELECTION EXPENSE - (Moved to Executive)              11,919          -                     11,919          

FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE TOTAL 33,670          -                     33,670          

001-514-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         90,000            -                      90,000            
001-514-312-000 LEGAL -COMP PLAN -                     -                    

 LEGAL SERVICES TOTAL 90,000          -                     90,000          

001-515-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES    40,000            -                      40,000            
001-515-340-000 OTHER SERVICES 80,702            -                      80,702            
001-515-343-000 PLANNING & ZONING CONTRACT    20,000            -                      20,000            
001-515-347-000 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN            -                      -                      -                      
001-515-349-000 COST RECOVERY EXPENDITURES 35,000            25,000            60,000            
001-515-490-000 LEGAL ADVERTISING - (New) 10,000          -                     10,000          

COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING AND ZONING TOTAL  185,702        -                     210,702        

LEGAL COUNSEL

FINANICAL AND ADMINSTRATIVE

EXECUTIVE

LEGISLATIVE       

 PLANNING & ZONING

APPROPRIATIONS

31 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY13-14 FY13-14 FY13-14
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

GENERAL FUND:
Fiscal Year 2014-15

001-519-315-000 SPECIAL MAGISTRATE            16,000            -                      16,000            
001-519-340-000 OTHER SERVICES -                      5,000              5,000              
001-519-354-000 CODE COMPLIANCE 38,000            (2,000)             36,000            
001-519-410-000 COMMUNICATION SERVICES 6,100              -                      6,100              
001-519-420-000 UTILITY SERVICES 1,600              1,600              
001-519-440-000 RENTALS AND LEASES            34,783            (6,000)             28,783            
001-519-450-000 INSURANCE                     18,000            -                      18,000            
001-519-460-000 R & M BUILDINGS                     3,600              8,000              11,600            
001-519-470-000 PRINTING AND BINDING -                      -                      -                      
001-519-480-000 PROMOTIONAL ACTIVITIES        -                      -                      -                      
001-519-490-000 COMPUTER EQUIP SOFTWARE & HARDWARE REPAIR 5,500              -                      5,500              
001-519-491-000 COMPUTER SERVICES 7,292              -                      7,292              
001-519-494-000 INSPECTOR GENERAL OFFICE FEE 5,280              -                      5,280              
001-519-610-000 LAND ACQUISITION -                      27,000            27,000            
001-519-620-000 BUILDINGS -                      487,750          487,750          
001-519-820-000  LOXAHATCHEE GROVES CERT -                      -                      -                      
001-519-900-000 TRANSFER TO TRANSPORTATION FUND 2,000              -                      2,000              
001-519-910-000 TRANSFER TO SANITATION FUND -                      -                      -                      
001-519-920-000 TRANSFER TO CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND -                      -                      -                      
001-519-990-000 CONTINGENCY                   15,524            -                      15,524            
001-519-998-000 TRANSFER TO GENERAL FUND-FUND BALANCE 1,000,000     (545,350)         454,650        

OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES TOTAL 1,152,079     (24,000)           1,128,079     

001-521-341-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES-PBSO        283,084          283,084          
001-521-342-000 CONTRACTUAL-ADDL PBSO           10,500          (7,000) 3,500            

LAW ENFORCEMENT TOTAL           293,584        -                     286,584        

001-539-340-000 OTHER SERVICES 4,000              (3,000)             1,000              
001-539-310-000 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES         -                      -                      -                      

 PUBLIC WORKS  TOTAL          4,000              (3,000) 1,000              

GRAND TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,095,897       -                      2,095,897       

PUBLIC WORKS

OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT

LAW ENFORCEMENT

32 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY13-14 FY13-14 FY13-14
ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED
BUDGET BUDGET

Account Number

405-325-205-000 SOLID WASTE ASSESSMENTS (1,260 units) 431,846        -                431,846       

405-325-206-000 DISCOUNT FEES (11,660)         -                (11,660)        

405-343-120-000 SWA RECYCLING INCOME 6,700            -                6,700           

405-363-990-000 CONTRIBUTION FROM GENERAL FUND -                    -                   

405-399-000-000 TRANSFER FROM FUND BALANCE 14,382          -                14,382         

Total Revenue 441,268        -                441,268       

405-534-345-000 CONTRACTUAL-WASTE OVERSIGHT         7,000            8,000        15,000         

405-534-346-000 PBC ADMINSTRATION FEE 1% 4,318            -                4,318           

405-534-420-000 POSTAGE & FREIGHT 300               -                300              

405-534-434-000 SOLID WASTE CONTRACTOR 414,150        (4,000)       410,150       

405-534-436-000 OTHER SANITATION SERVICES 15,000          (4,000)       11,000         

405-534-490-000 LEGAL ADVERTISING 500               -                500              

405-534-595-000 TOLG MANAGEMENT FEES -                    -                   

Total Expenditure 441,268        -                441,268       

Solid Waste Fund
Fiscal Year 2014-15

ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

33 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



FY13-14 FY13-14 FY13-14

ADOPTED CHANGE AMENDED

BUDGET BUDGET

Fund #

001 GENERAL FUND 2,095,897             -                          2,095,897           

101 TRANSPORTATION FUND 781,049                -                          781,049              

305 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 1,555,252             -                          1,555,252           

405 SOLID WASTE FUND 441,268                -                          441,268              

Total Estimated Revnue 4,873,466             -                          4,873,466           

001 GENERAL FUND 2,095,897             -                          2,095,897           

101 TRANSPORTATION FUND 781,049                -                          781,049              

305 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT FUND 1,555,252             -                          1,555,252           

405 SOLID WASTE FUND 441,268                -                          441,268              

Total Appropriations 4,873,466             -                          4,873,466           

All Funds
Fiscal Year 2014-15

ESTIMATED REVENUES

APPROPRIATIONS

34 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida

9/30/13 Fund Balance $690,277

FY 2014 Estimated Change $400,000

FY 2014 Est. Total Fund Balance $1,090,277

FY2015 Fiscal Policy Reserve @ 25% ($523,974)

FY 2015 Est. Total Fund Balance Change $454,650

FY 2015 Est. Total Fund Balance $1,020,953

5 cent Fund Balance 6 cent Fund Balance

9/30/13 Fund Balance $432,695 9/30/13 Fund Balance $464,191

FY 2014 Estimated Change ($199,360) FY 2014 Estimated Change $0

FY 2014 Est. Total Fund Balance $233,335 FY 2014 Est. Total Fund Balance $464,191

FY 2015 Appropriated (Budgeted ) Fund Balance ($233,000) FY 2015 Appropriated (Budgeted ) Fund Balance ($179,423)

FY 2015 Est. Total ASSIGNED Fund Balance $335 FY 2015 Est. Total ASSIGNED Fund Balance $284,768

9/30/13 Fund Balance $37,058

FY 2014 Estimated Change 7,000          

FY 2014 Est. Total Fund Balance $44,058

Fiscal Policy Reserve @ 10% ($42,793)

FY 2014 Est. Total Fund Balance $1,265

FY 2015 Appropriated (Budgeted ) Fund Balance ($14,673)

FY 2015 Est. Total ASSIGNED Fund Balance ($13,408)

9/30/13 ASSIGNED Fund Balance $1,400,000

FY 2014 Estimated Change ($400,000)

FY 2014 Est. Total ASSIGNED Fund Balance $1,000,000

FY 2014 Est. Transfer from Trans Fund $220,000

FY 2014 Available Resources $1,220,000

FY 2014 Estimated Change ($220,000)

FY 2015 Appropriated (Budgeted ) Fund Balance ($1,000,000)

FY 2015 Est. Total ASSIGNED Fund Balance $0

CAFR ASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

Capital Improvement Program

Statement of Estimated Changes in Fund Balances
General Fund

Transportation Fund

Solid Waste Fund

CAFR UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

CAFR UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

CAFR UNASSIGNED FUND BALANCE

UMSG,LLC 5/13/20152:27 PM
35 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

wunde_000
Typewritten Text
Exhibit B

wunde_000
Typewritten Text



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 7.c. 

RESOLUTION NO 2015-17 

 
Appointment of P&Z Board 

(One application for an Alternate position attached) 
 

 

36 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00075602.1 1574-0702400 }  

 
 
 
 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-17 
 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, APPOINTING 
________________________________, ________________________________, 
________________________________, ________________________________, 
AND ___________________________________________, AS REGULAR 
MEMBERS OF THE TOWN’S PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD TO 
SERVE TERMS OF ONE (1) YEAR, AND APPOINTING 
______________________ AND ______________________ AS ALTERNATE 
MEMBERS OF THE TOWN’S PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD TO 
SERVE TERMS OF ONE (1) YEAR; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICT, 
SEVERABILITY, AND AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, regular and alternate members of the Town Council are appointed pursuant 

to Ordinance 2011-011, which was amended by Ordinance 2012-02, to allow alternate members 

of the Planning and Zoning Board to participate in any matter coming before the Board at a 

meeting at which the alternate member attends, and by Ordinance 2015-02, to amend the terms 

of regular members of the Planning and Zoning Board to be one (1) year terms; and,  

WHEREAS, the Town Council finds it in the best interest to appoint regular and 

alternate members of the Planning and Zoning Board for terms of one (1) year, and to make such 

appointments for the upcoming year.   

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, THAT: 

 Section 1. The foregoing "WHEREAS" clauses are hereby ratified and confirmed as 

being true and correct and are hereby made a specific part of this Resolution. 

 

37 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00075602.1 1574-0702400 }  

Section 2.  The Town Council hereby appoints the following persons to serve as regular 

members of the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board for a term of one (1) year: 

Mayor David Browning appoints  ________________________________.  

Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel appoints   ________________________________.  

Council Member Tom Goltzené appoints  ________________________________.  

Council Member Ryan Liang appoints  ________________________________.  

Councilmember Jim Rockett appoints  ________________________________.  

Section 3. The Town Council hereby appoints the following persons to serve as 

alternate members of the Town’s Planning and Zoning Board for a term of one (1) year: 

_________________________________ 

_________________________________ 

Section 4.  All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby repealed 

to the extent of such conflict. 

Section 5.  If any clause, section, other part or application of this Resolution is held by 

any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or application, it 

shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Resolution. 

Section 6.  This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage and 

adoption. 

 
 

[Signature page following]  

38 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00075602.1 1574-0702400 }  

ADOPTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 
GROVES, FLORIDA, THIS ___ DAY OF _______________, 2015.  
 
 

      TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES,  
      FLORIDA 

 
 
       ____________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Mayor David Browning  
 
_______________________________  ____________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
     
       ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené 
 
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  ____________________________________ 
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
 
        ____________________________________ 
Office of the Town Attorney    Council Member Jim Rockett  

39 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



40 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 7.d. 

RESOLUTION NO 2015-18 

Participation in Town Boards 

 
 

41 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00074600.1 1574-0702400 }  

TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 
LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, FLORIDA, RELATING TO PROCEDURES 
AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION FOR TOWN BOARD AND 
COMMITTEE MEETINGS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the Town Council finds it in the best interest of the Town to confirm a 

uniform policy, based upon the policy used by the Town Council, for conduct of business and 
public participation at Town Board and Committee meetings. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Town Council of the Town of Loxahatchee 
Groves as follows: 
 
 Section 1. Each “WHEREAS” clause set forth above is true and correct and herein 
incorporated by this reference. 
 
 Section 2. All meetings of Town boards and committees shall be conducted in 
accordance with the following: 
 

A.  All meetings or workshops shall be governed by the Rules of Procedure set forth 
herein, where applicable.  
 

B. Any board or committee member desiring to speak must be recognized by the Chair. 
If the Chair desires to participate in a discussion, he or she shall do so only when all 
members of the board or committee have spoken at least once (if so desired). No 
member of the board or committee shall interrupt another member of the board or 
committee who has been recognized by the Chair and no member shall dominate the 
floor in excess of five (5) minutes without offering to yield to other members of  the 
board or committee. 

 
C. The Chair shall not use that position to dominate debate or discussion, nor 

unreasonably cut short or prolong any debate, discussion or taking of any vote. 
 
D. Any matters not specifically addressed by this policy will be governed by Robert's 

Rules of Order to the extent possible. 
 
E. Except when abstaining from voting in accordance with Florida Statutes, each 

member who is present at a meeting must vote on each decision, ruling or other 
official act. A roll call vote may be had on any matter for which the Chair deems is 
appropriate; otherwise, all votes may be done by voice vote. For roll call votes, the 
order of each member vote will rotate after each roll call vote. The Chair shall 

42 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00074600.1 1574-0702400 } 2 
 

announce the results after each vote. 
 
F. Public comments shall be placed on the agenda at the beginning of the meeting and at 

the end of meeting.  Public comments will also be entertained for each agenda item. 
Public Comment will be allowed after board or committee deliberation and prior to 
the vote on any item.  Public comment is an opportunity for members of the public to 
make comment, and shall not be a question/answer period conducted with the board 
or committee.  Persons desiring to speak on an item shall submit a comment card to 
the board or committee clerk.  All public comments shall be limited to a three (3) 
minute time period.  

 
Section 3. All resolutions or parts of resolutions in conflict herewith are hereby 

repealed to the extent of such conflict. 
 
Section 4. If any clause, section, other part or application of this Resolution is held 

by any court of competent jurisdiction to be unconstitutional or invalid, in part or application, it 
shall not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Resolution. 

 
Section 5.   This Resolution shall become effective upon adoption. 

   
 
RESOLVED AND ADOPTED by the Town Council of the TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE 

GROVES, Florida this         day of_______________, 2015. 

       TOWN OF LOXAHATCHEE GROVES, 
ATTEST:      FLORIDA 
 
____________________________   ________________________________ 
Janet K. Whipple, Town Clerk   Mayor David Browning  
   
       ________________________________ 
       Vice-Mayor Ron Jarriel   
  
       ________________________________ 
       Council Member Tom Goltzené  
     
APPROVED AS TO LEGAL FORM:  _____________________________ 
       Council Member Ryan Liang 
______________________________       
Town Attorney     __________________________ 
       Council Member Jim Rockett 
 
 

43 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 7.e. 

RESOLUTION NO 2015-16 – QUASI-JUDICIAL 

Day property Site Plan Approvaql 
 

44 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. RESOLUTIONS 7.e. 
PREPARED BY:  l Jim Fleischmann   

SUBJECT:  Proposed Site Plan SP 2015-01 Approval for Day Property 
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The applicant has requested Site Plan approval for the Day Property.  The assignment of 
Commercial Low land use (Town Ordinance 2014-06) and zoning (Town Ordinance 2014-07) designations were 
previously assigned by the Town.    

Problem Solution:  Consider approval of Resolution 2015-16. 

2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

The PZB and RETAG Advisory Committee at their joint meeting of February, 19 2014 recommended approval of 
application SP 2015-01 subject to the following conditions: 

• A 12-foot easement for a horse trail be granted, and maintained by the applicant, along the Okeechobee 
Boulevard property frontage. 

 
• Parking spaces on the property shall not exceed the code-required 150 parking spaces. 
 
• Prior to consideration of the application by the Town Council, the Town’s Consulting Engineer, or 

appropriate alternative, shall review the Applicant’s Traffic Study, specifically including trip generation rates 
and project impact upon the Okeechobee Boulevard/Folsom Road intersection. 

 
• Prior to consideration by the Town Council, the Town’s Consulting Engineer, or an appropriate alternative, 

shall review and comment on the following: ingress/egress at the Okeechobee Boulevard and Folsom Road 
entrances; internal traffic flow within the project; impact of traffic flow on the Okeechobee 
Boulevard/Folsom Road intersection; the viability of allowing westbound left-turns from Okeechobee 
Boulevard into the project; and  

 
• Prior to consideration by the Town Council, and based upon the above reviews, the Town’s Council, the 

Town’s Consulting Engineer, or an appropriate alternative, shall prepare recommendations for off-site traffic 
improvements necessitated by traffic generated by the proposed development. 
 

3.  ATTACHMENTS  
   1.  Staff Report SP Application 2015-01 
   2.  Resolution 2015-16 
  
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
     SP Application 2015-01 is funded by the Applicant through the Town’s Cost Recovery System. 
   
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  

  Approval of Resolution 2015-16, subject to the Site Plan, Statement of Use and Conditions of Approval 
contained therein. 

45 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



46 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



47 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



48 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



49 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



50 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



51 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



52 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



53 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



54 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



55 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



56 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



57 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



58 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



59 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



60 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



61 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



62 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



63 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



64 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



65 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



66 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



67 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



68 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



69 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



70 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 8.a. 

MANAGER’S REPORT 

  

71 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00075600.1 1574-0702400 }  

Town of Loxahatchee Groves, Florida 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT AGENDA 

ITEM NO. MANAGER’S REPORT 8.a. 

MEETING DATE: 05/19/2015 
 
 
 
 

PREPARED BY: William F. Underwood, II, Town Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Manager Update 

 
1. BACKGROUND/HISTORY 

 
Problem Statement:  The Town Council requests updates on activities and issues. 

 
Problem Solution:   Provide the Council with an update. 

 
The Council requested they be updated on the various issues facing the Town, it is noted that 
items in this category be provided as part of a written report. 

 
 
 
2.CURRENT ACTIVITY 

 
• Trails: At the Town Council meeting of 11/18/2014, the Council approved the Town 

drafted ILA for funding the trails, maintenance easements, and roads.  The ILA was 
transmitted to the LGWCD on Wednesday, 11/19/2014. 
o Subsequent to the ILA transmittal, the Town Attorney, and staff met with the 

LGWCD attorney and administrator on Friday, 11/21/2014, at the office of the 
District’s attorney. 

o Substantial progress was made.  The Town attorney provided the District’s attorney 
with a summary of the discussion points to be incorporated within a jointly 
prepared ILA. 

o On or about December 3, the Town received comments from the attorney for the 
LGWCD. 

O On December 9, the Town Attorney and I were reviewing the points of the 
agreement. 

o This working group will labor to complete the agreement and present to the 
respective legislative boards as soon as practical. 

o As of December 30, 2014, the Town is on hold pending a response from LGWCD. 
o Recent discussion on January 13, 2015 with the Administrator indicates the Town 

should be reviewing a response soon. 
o On January 23, 2015, the Town received an ILA from the LGWCD without first 

agreeing to the initial discussion positions tentatively agreed upon at the November 
21, 2014, meeting.  We requested the LGWCD provide a document which can be 
edited and changes tracked instead of the document provided which would the Town 
can use instead of having the Town Attorney re-type the agreement at additional cost. 

o Subsequent to receipt and request, on January 23, 2015, the Town was informed the 

72 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00075600.1 1574-0702400 }  

LGWCD was incorporating a few more tweaks to the agreement.  Upon completion, 
they will send the document to the Town. 

o February 3, 2915, the Town received another agreement from the LGWCD, without 
confirmation regarding the original agreed upon discussion points outlined at the 
11/21/2014 meeting between the Town and district staff.  Attorney and staff did not 
have sufficient time to review the document before the district meeting on 2/10/2015. 

o February 26, 2015, the Town attorney and this office discussed the ILA submitted by 
the LGWCD.  Further, The Town Attorney has requested a date and time to discuss the 
ILA during the week of the March 2nd.  As of this writing, we have not received a 
response from the district.  

o March 19, 2015, the Town Attorney and I met with Mary Viator and Frank Palen in 
their offices to review the ILA agreements.  New issues were submitted for Town 
compliance by the district’s attorney.  The new items require the Town to prepare 
construction standards for public trails upon the district’s easements, if applicable.  
Additionally, it appears that before any trails can be used by the citizens, trail 
construction standards must be adopted, implemented, and fences are or may be 
required.  These have not been mentioned at any prior discussion regarding the ILA. 
Under this new requirement: 

 The Town should first prepare a set of standards that will be incorporated 
within the agreement.   

 Further, we learned that not all maintenance easements would be treated as 
public trails.  The trail network concept must be determined before this office 
could recommend an ILA be agreed upon.  

The meeting concluded with the following actions: 
o District attorney and staff will review the base ILA agreement and offer 

potential changes. 
o Town attorney and staff will review the “permit” document and offer 

potential changes. 
o April 14, 2015, this office has not had an opportunity to complete the review of the base 

ILA nor begin the work on reconstructing the Permit pursuant to the district’s request. 
o April 21, 2015, Town Attorney and this office edited the latest agreement from the 

LGWCD with very minor changes (between 3 and 6 changes).   
1. We eliminated duplicate language from the Permit that was already 

stated in the ILA.   
2. After discussing proposed changes with the Administrator, this 

office sent via email the redlined Permit and ILA on May 5, 2015.  
We modified the reimbursement sequence to remit payment after 
the survey map and legal description had been filed with the Clerk 
of the Court and we allow for progress payments as sections are 
completed and filed.   

o May 6, 2015, the Town Attorney received a newly revised ILA and permit from 
LGWCD.  While there was agreement with some of the language, the Town was again 
faced with not having access to the trail system until trail construction was approved 
and permitted.  To the best of my knowledge, outside of installing a fence, the Town 
has no intention to “construct” trails. 

1. May 7 and 8, 2015, the Town Attorney and this office reviewed the 
May 6, 2015, revisions submitted by the LGWCD and provided an 
appropriate response that “if construction” occurs, the Town will 
submit for their approval plans and specifications for the trail.  This 
office has iterated time and again, this office, and I believe the 

73 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00075600.1 1574-0702400 }  

Town Council, has no desire to “construct” trails, except for 
perhaps fences in specific cases.  This office has never disagreed 
that fencing may be required prior to opening the trails for non-
motorized public use.  This office has rejected 4 items in the ILA 
changed by the LGWCD, all in reference to the Town Connecting 
to and “constructing” trails.  Similarly, the Permit to use the trails 
contains language that requires construction.   

o May 11, 2015, Town Attorney forwarded comments on ILA and permit to District 
counsel.  The ILA was discussed at the District Board meeting that evening, where the 
BOS passed the ILA including some of the input provided by the Town.   

o May 12, 2015, Town Attorney received the approved ILA and Permit from the BOS’s 
attorney and it is reviewed and this office would like to incorporate 3 minor 
modifications into the ILA and permit.  

 
• Traffic:  Staff is working with Minto to draft an agreement between Minto and the Town for 

the funding of the traffic light at Okeechobee Boulevard and D Road. 
o A discussion with Minto’s attorney on December 29, 2014, indicated Palm Beach County 

would agree for the Town and Minto to enter into a funding agreement which may 
exclude the County. 

o No activity on this item as of January 14, 2015. 
o No activity on this item as of January 26, 2015. 
o No activity on this item as of February 10, 2015. 
o This office has received communication and we are trying to establish a date and time 

during the week of March 9th.   
o No activity on this item as of April 1, 2015. 
o April 15, 2015 this office met with representatives from Minto.  Discussion points were 

covered regarding the proposed funding of the traffic control appurtenances for D Road 
and Okeechobee.  Staff will review the information and report progress at the June 16 
Town Council meeting.  

o No activity on this item as of May 11, 2015. 
 

• Building:  Staff had a meeting with the Day property representative to preliminary discuss the 
prospective site plan for the property on Tuesday, December 9.  The meeting was to review site 
plan requirements and process 
o We reviewed the site plan submission requirements 
o Discussed the site plan specifically 

 addressing conditions of approval 
 perimeter landscaping buffer requirements 
 horse trail potential 

o Timing of submittal and hearings 
 PBC manages traffic related issues and may need to be at meetings 
 LGWCD to affirm positive outfall for drainage 
 Interconnection to westerly property discussion 
 Set RETGAC meeting for January 2015 
 P&Z meeting for January 2015 
 About March present to Town Council. 

o No Activity since the 12/16/2014 meeting. 
o On 1/12/2015, staff and Mr. Lipp, met with representatives reviewing Rural Vista  

guidelines assisting the representatives determine the guidelines. 
o This item is due to be presented to the P&Z and RETGAC committees jointly at their 

74 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00075600.1 1574-0702400 }  

February 19, 2015, meeting. 
o The February 19th P&Z and RETGAC joint meeting placed additional conditions upon 

the site plan such as an equestrian trail on the north boundary of the property from east to 
west and the Town’s engineer provide a review of the conclusions of the traffic study 
and acceptance. 

o The Town Attorney has received comments regarding the requested trail easement and 
will be providing a response soon. 

o Town Attorney spoke with Day’s counsel.   
o The site plan with conditions supported by staff is being presented to the Town Council 

at its May 19, 2015 meeting. 
 

• Roads:  This office met with Angela Hendrichsen Sandoval, P. E., PMP, Section Leader, and 
Ken Mudd, Resource Professional IV, representing South Florida Water Management District 
(SFWMD) in reference to a permit the SFWMD issued in 1982 for a road and swale 
improvement on 43rd.  As I understand the purpose of the meeting, SFWMD was looking to 
determine whether or not the Town would assist them in correcting a deficiency in the road 
and swale drainage system on the road.  The Town will be contacted in the future regarding the 
next step to be taken to correct the problem. 
o No activity since the 12/16/2014 meeting. 
o No activity from SFWMD representative as of 1/14/2015. 
o This office received communication from SFWMD regarding their internal work to plan 

their path forward on January 15, 2015.  Upon completing their planning effort, they 
will be in touch with staff. 

o No activity since 1/15/2015 to 2/11/1015. 
o February 23, 2015, Ms. Hendrichsen Sandoval stated that this office will be notified in 

advance of a letter will be drafted informing residents of a meeting to discuss the matter. 
o No activity as of April 1, 2015. 
o No activity on this item as of April 14, 2015. 
o No activity as of May 11, 2015. 

 
• Roads:  Speed hump removal is being investigated as to the methodology and cost of eliminating 

those traffic control devices to meet the Town’s distance specifications. 
o Due to time constraints, this office has been unable to get a response from potential 

vendors; however, the  Town consultant believed the cost to be equal or greater than the 
$700 cost per speed hump to install. 

o No activity as of May 11, 2015.  
 
• Building:  Town of Loxahatchee Groves - Town Hall 

o Town Hall dedication will be Saturday, June 13, 2015 from 10 A.M. to 1 P.M. 
 
• Unauthorized living structures:  Pursuant to Town Council instruction, staff initiated action 

against 1666 C Road for providing for the operations of excess living structures on the property 
which impacts the Town, at a minimum, through solid waste removal without appropriate 
payment for the services. 

 
o Additionally, staff has proceeded with various actions on other properties initiated by 

individuals. 
o Staff began the survey and will finish and work to prepare a report for either the April 

21, or May 5, 2015, agenda. 
o Staff is working to complete a public records request relative to this case as of May 11, 

2015. 

75 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



{00075600.1 1574-0702400 }  

• Law Enforcement:  Staff is working with the PBSO to create a Town wide “Citizen On 
Patrol.” 

o April 16, 2015, staff requested Lt. David L. Combs, consider implementing a COP 
program in the Town. 

o  April 30, 2015, Sgt. Matthew J. LaVigna, Community Services Division, provided 
background information on establishing a COP program.  While he provided many 
details, some of the more important items are: We need 30 full time residents to apply; 
each member must commit to patrol 3 hours per week; each member must attend a 
monthly unit meeting, and the Town must supply the fuel; PBSO will supply the patrol 
vehicle that accommodates the Town’s roadways, uniform shirts, training and support. 
 

 
 
3. ATTACHMENTS 

 
4. FINANCIAL IMPACT 

 
Not applicable. 

 
5. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
Motion to receive and file report. 

76 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

  

Item 10.a. 

New Business  

Approve or modify LPA recommendations regarding Okeechobee 
Boulevard Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Amendment. 

77 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Town of Loxahatchee Groves, FLORIDA 
Town Council AGENDA ITEM REPORT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. NEW BUSINESS 10.a. 
     

PREPARED BY:    l Jim Fleischmann 
  

 

SUBJECT:  Okeechobee Blvd.  Future Land Use Element Text Amendments 
  
1.  BACKGROUND/HISTORY  
  

  

Problem Statement:  The Town Council should adopt amendments regarding Okeechobee 
Boulevard and its future land use in the Comprehensive Plan. 

Problem Solution:  Consider proposed amendments and provide the Local Planning Agency with 
direction for revising the Comprehensive Plan.  

The Town Council enacted Ordinance 2014-08 (February 3, 2015) enacting a moratorium on 
commercial Future Land Use Map amendments until May 31, 2015.  The purpose of the moratorium was 
to allow the Local Planning Agency adequate time to prepare recommendations to the Town Council 
regarding appropriate non-residential uses and intensity and timing of future development activity along 
Okeechobee Boulevard.    

2.  CURRENT ACTIVITY  
 

  

The Local Planning Agency held 9 meetings on the subject of Okeechobee Boulevard during the 
November 2014 – April 2015 period.  Over that period, the Staff and LPA jointly prepared proposed 
Future Land Use Plan amendments for Town Council consideration.  At the last meeting on the subject 
(April 30, 2015), the LPA, by consensus, agreed to forward the amendments to Town Council for further 
consideration and direction for Stagg and the LPA. 

3.  ATTACHMENTS  
   1.  Proposed Okeechobee Boulevard Future Land Use Element amendments. 
  
4.  FINANCIAL IMPACT  
 Work on this project is funded by Council Work Authorization  No. 1215-01 
 
5.  RECOMMENDED ACTION  
  Direct Staff and the Local Planning Agency to proceed with the Comprehensive Plan amendment 

process, as written (see attachment) or with revisions directed by Town Council.   

78 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



79 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



80 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



81 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



82 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



83 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



84 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



85 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



86 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



87 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



88 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



89 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



90 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



91 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



92 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



93 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



94 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



95 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 Item 11. a. 

COUNCIL REPORTS – Vice Mayor Jarriel 

a. Discussion of Grant Applications 
b. Discussion/Direction ILA for Trails 

 
(No back up) 

96 of 96  05/19/2015 TC Agenda Packet 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


	AGENDA
	2.a.Consent Agenda - Minutes 03/17/2015
	2.a. Consent Agenda - Cancellation of June 2, 2015 TC Meeting
	6.a Ordinance No. 2015-02 re Planning & Zoning Board
	6.b. Ordinance No. 2015-03 Disposal of Waste Materials
	7.a. Resolution No. 2015-10 Melissa McKinlay
	7.b Resolution No. 2015-15 Budget Amendment
	7.c. Resolution No. 2015-17 Appointment of P&Z Board
	7.d. Resolution No. 2015-18 Board Participation
	7.e. Resolution No. 2015-16 Quasi Judicial Day Property Site Plan Approval
	8.a. Manager's Report
	10.a. New Business Okeechobee Boulevard Future Land Use Element
	11.a. Council Reports - no back up



